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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Neotrex Steel Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Neotrex Steel Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at
March 31, 2023, and the statement of profit and loss, (including the statement of other comprehensive income), the cash flow
statement and the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary

of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and its profit

and other comprehensive income, its cash flow and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under sub-section
(10) of Section 143 of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required

to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management and Board of directors for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are is responsible for the matters stated in sub-section (5) of Section 134 of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and
financial performance including other comprehensive income, change in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguardir:eg_;-_of_-'fl;ié- aégéts-bf the Company and for

preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application qf.'- p‘roprlaté ac'counﬂhg policies; making
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judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting

unless the management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the

audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal controf relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under clause (i) of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating

effectiveness of such controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting in
preparation of financial statement and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a

going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the

financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with-rélevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters th_a‘t_'ma\) reasonably be thought to bear on our

f

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of
sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by sub-section {3) of Section 143 of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were

necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our

examination of those books.

c. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including the statement of other comprehensive income), the cash flow

statement and statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the

Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of sub-section
(2) of Section 164 of the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company and the

operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

g. The Company has not paid / not provided for managerial remuneration in the books of accounts. Accordingly, provisions of

Section 197 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule (11) of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations

given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position in the financial statements

— Refer Note 33(a) of the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material

foreseeable losses; and

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the

Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,

e  directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
e  provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Car
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(b)

{c)

The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are either material

either individually or in aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign

entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company

shall,

e  directly orindirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Parties or

e  provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate on the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to belleve that the representation under sub-cluse (i) and (it} of
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared and paid dividend during the year.

vi.  Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014, for maintaining books of account using accounting software

which has a feature of recording audit trall {edit log) facility is applicable to the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2023, and
accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial
year ended March 31, 2023.

For SHAH GUPTA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reglstration No.: 109574W.—=~—

W
Heneel K Patel

Partner
M. No.114103

Unlque Document Identification Number (UDIN) for this document Is 23114103BGYHJS2352

Place: Mumbai

Date: April 25, 2023
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of

Neotrex Steel Private Limited of even date)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

'vii)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
property, plant and equipment.

(B) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, the
Company does not have any Intangible assets and accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 (i) (a) (B) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been physically verified by the Management during the year and

no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease

agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), are held in the name of the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets during

the year.

Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are

pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of

1988) and Rules made thereunder.

The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the Management during the year and,

in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by Management is appropriate. The discrepancies noticed

on physical verification of inventory by the Management, as compared to book records were not material and have been
appropriately dealt with in the books of account. No discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory
were noticed in respect of such physical verification.

During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate from

banks and financial institutions and accordingly, the question of our commenting on whether the quarterly returns or

statements are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company does not arise.

The Company has made investments in one company, not granted secured/ unsecured loans/advances in nature of loans,

to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, other parties, or stood guarantee, or provided security to companies,

firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, other parties.

The terms and conditions of the investment made are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

The Company has not given loans/advances in nature of loan. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 (iii) (c) of the Order

is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not given loans/advances in nature of loan. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 {iii) (d) of the Order

is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not given loans/advances in nature of loan. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 (iii) (e) of the Order

is not applicable to the Company.

There were no loans/advances in nature of loans which were granted during the year to promoters/related parties.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, or provided

guarantees under section 185 of the Act. The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 186 of the Act in respect of the

investments made.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are

deemed to be deposits from the public within the meaning of Section 73 to Section 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under

to the extent notified.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Act for any

of the products by the Company. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 {vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a)

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the records of the company examined by us, the Company
is generally regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees' state insurance, income tax, service tax, goods and service tax, eess afid other material statutory dues applicable
to it. According to the information and explanations given to us, theré are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
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viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

income tax, service tax, goods and service tax, cess and other material statutory dues which were outstanding, at the year
end, for a year of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, goods and
service tax, income tax, duty of excise, duty of excise, value added tax, and cess which have not been deposited on account
of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, there is no income

.surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been

recorded in the books of account.

(a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given to us, the Company

has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the
Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government
authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the money raised by way of the term loans

have been applied by the Company during the year for the purpose for which it was raised.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an overall
examination of the Financial Statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, the question of our commenting on
whether the Company taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures does not arise.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, the question of our commenting on
whether the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures
or associate companies does not arise.

(a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3 {x) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has made preferential allotment of fully convertible debentures during the year. For such allotment of
debentures, the Company has complied with the requirements of Section 42 and Section 62 of the Act and the funds raised
have been prima facia applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which funds were raised. The Company

has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares during the year.

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally
accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come
across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we

been informed of any such case by the Management.

(b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally
accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, a report under sub-
clause (12) of Section 143 of the Act, in Form ADT-4, was not required to be filed. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 {xi)
{b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in accordance with the generally
accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, and as represented to
us by the management, no whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the Company. Accordingly,

reporting under clause 3 (xi) (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of Section 188 of the Act. The
details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required under Indian Accounting
Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act. Further, the Company is not required to constitute
an Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Act and, accordingly, to this extent, t!ie reporting under clause 3 (xiii) of the Order is

not applicable to the Company.
)/
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(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

{xx)

{xxi)

(a) in our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, provisions of internal audit are not applicable

to the Company.

(b) The Company did not have an internal audit system during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3 (xiv) (b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with Directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, reporting
under paragraph 3 (xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the

reporting under clause 3 (xvi) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the year. Accordingly, the

reporting under clause 3 (xvi) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (xvi) (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) We have been informed by the management that as per the definition of Group under Core Investment Companies (Reserve
Bank) Directions 2016, there is one Core Investment Company (CIC) which is registered and three CICs which are not

required to be registered with the Reserve Bank of India, forming part of the promoter group.
The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly, reporting under clause (xviii) is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios (Also refer Notes to the Financial
Statements), ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the Financial Statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a year of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a year of one year
from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing projects requiring a
transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of
Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (xx) (a) of Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a
Fund specified in Schedule V!l to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (6) of Section 135 of
the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (xx) (b) of Order is not applicable to the Company.

The reporting under clause 3 (xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone Financial Statements. Accordingly,

no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report.

For SHAH GUPTA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 109574W

Ildr

Heneel
Partner

K Patel

M. No.114103

Unique

Document Identification Number (UDIN) for this document is 23114103BGYHJS2352

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 25, 2023
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under Clause (i) of sub-section (3) of
Section 143 of the Act

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Neotrex Steel Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March

31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness

of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under sub-section (10) of Section 143 of the Act,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the’Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the

internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these financial statements

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financia! reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of the financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely

detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial

statements. L/f‘a/’

8of9|Page



Inherent Limitations of Internal Financlal Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements to future year are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects,
an adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india.

For SHAH GUPTA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 109574W

Heneel K Patel

Partner

M. No.114103

Unique Document Identification Number (UDIN) for this document is 23114103BGYHJS2352

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 25, 2023
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Neotrex Steel Private Limited
Talance sheecas at 31 Mareh, 2023
¢ Amontire int T fak iy

. . As at Asx al
Pariicalun: . 31 March. 2023 3 Mureh, 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 2.1 19,472.06 68.9%
(b) Capital work-in-progress 2.1 3.962.03 18,833.95
(c) Intangible assels under development 22 4.86 4 86
(d) Right-of-use assets 2.3 51.77 22.37
(e) Financial assets
(i) Investments k) 173.41
(ii) Other financial assets 4 71309 680.39
() Income tax assets (net) 24 ' 17.17 5.80
(g) Other non-curvent assets 5 86.41 12222
Total non<current assets 24,480.80 1_9,468.57'
Current asscts
(a) Inventorics 6 3,051.67
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 7 5,127.18 .
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 8 1,086.91 975.47
(1ii) Bank balances other than (ji) above 9 140.00 215.00
(iv) Other financial assels 10 22.41 8.76
(c) Other current assets 11 2,130:10 - = 1,330.09
Total current asscts 11,558.27 2,529.32
Total assets - 3603907 21,997.89 |
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital . 12 245 t 245
(b) Instruments entirely equity in nature 13 11,997.55 10,414,53
(¢) Other equity 14 L - 295.89 10.85
Total cquity 12,295.89 10,427.83
Nou-current Uabilitles '
(a) Financial liabilities .
(i) Borrowings 15 13,546.94 .
(ii) Lease liabilities 2.3 1.64 0.74
(iii) Other financial liabilities 16 . 733.71
(b) Provisions 17 6.69 0.66
(¢) Deferred tax liabilities (net} 23 62.16 !
(d) Other non-current liabilitics 18 710.29 710.29
Total non-current Uabilitles 14,327.72 1,445.40
Current liabilities
(o) Financial liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities 23 0.26 0.11
(ii) Trade payables 19
(a) Total outstanding, dues of micro and smal! enterprises 283.11 -
(b) Tota! cutstanding, dues of creditors other than micro and small 7,407.56 3.90
entetprises
(iii) Other financial liabilities 20 1,135.79 10,111,78
(b) Provisions 21 0.12 0.03
(c) Other current liabilities 22 588.62 8.84
Total currcnt liabfMties 9,415.46 10,124.66
Total linbilltles 23,743.18 11,570.06
Total equity and llabllities 36.039.07 21.997.8¢
Sec accompanying notes to the financlal statements
As per our attached report of even date,
For SHAII GUPTA & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directo
Chartered Accountants
RN No. 109574W = lt.\
- p. \
s — \ -
W {\,v..::/_,‘ — L8 " L
Henecl K Patel Amit Agarwal Pattanaselry Rafastichar
Pertner ) Director Director
M No. 114103 g DIN: 09204911 DIN: 09514548

Place : Mumbai =L
Date: 25, April 2023 ——
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Ncotrex Steel Private Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the ycar ended 31 March, 2023

Particulars

I Revenue from operations
II  Other income
II1 Total income (1 + II}

1V Expenses:
Cosl of materials consumed

Employee benefils expense
Finance cost
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses
Total expenses
V  Profit before exceptional ltems and tax (ITI-1IV)
VI Exceptional items

VII Profit before tax (V-VI)
VIII Tax expense
Current tax
Deferred tax

IX Profit for the year (VII-VIII)
X  Other comprehensive Income

A (1) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Re-measurements of the defined benefil plans
(b) Equity instruments through other comprehensive income

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Total (A)

B (l) Items that will be reclassifled to profit or loss
Total (B)

Total Other comprehensive income (A+B)
XI Tatal comprebensive Income / (loss) (IX + X)

XII Earnings per cquity share « par value ¥ 10 per share
Basic (in ¥)
Diluted (in T)

Changes in inventories of finished and semi-finished goods, work-in-progress

Amount in ¥ 11/ n

Notes Yecar ended ¥ear ended
31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022
25 10,177.75
26 57.72 38.43
10,235.47 38.43
27 9,474.02
28 (1,302.94)
29 176.55
30 326.59 0.08
3 260.65 4.52
12 917.56 17.64
9,852.43 22.24
383.04 16.15
383.04 16.19
43
1.75 1.12
L - 66.06
67.81 112
= 31523 15.07
(34.09)
l 3.90
(30.19)
—_ (3019
285,04 15.07 |
37
0.28 0.03
0.28 003

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per our attached report of even date.

For SHAH GUPTA & CO.

Chartered Accountants —,
FRN No. 109574W s GU

Heneel K Patel
Partner

M No. 114103
Place : Mumbai
Date: 25, April 2023
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Director Director - .~
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Neotrex Steel Private Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March, 2023

Amornt in 3 taidicy

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2023 1 Mareh, 2072
Cash Nlow from operating activllies . e
Met profit before tax 383.04 16.19
Adjustments for :
|Depeeciation and amortisation expenses 260.65 4.52
Inlerest income (54.55) (37.53)
Ciain arising of financial instruments designaled as FVTPL (1.52) (0.90)
Interest expense 326.5% 0.08
Unrealised exchanpe (gain) /loss (net) (4.62) (1.96)
Operaling profit before working capltal changes 909.59 (19.60)
Adjustments for :
(Inerease) / Decrease in inventories (3,051.67)
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables (5,127.18) .
(Increase) / Decrease in financial assets (44.83) (300.00)
(Increase) / Decrease in other assets (800.01) (1,218.85)
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables 7,686.77 3.69
Increase / (Decrease) in financial liabilites (9,689.62) 10,581.31
Increase / (Decrease) in other liabilites 579.78 719,40
Increase / (Decrease) in provisions 6.12 <
Cash flow from opcratlons (9.531.05) 9,765.95
Income taxes paid (net of refund received) (13.12) o (5_.8.8I}
Net cash generated from (used In) operating activities (A) (9.544.17) 9.760.07 |
Cash flow from Investing actlvitles
Purchase of property, plant & equipment, intangible asscts (including (5,042.50) (17,320.38)
under development and capital advances)
Investment in equity shares (207.50)
Bank deposits not considered as cash and cash equivalents (net) 75.00 25.00
Inleres! received 2735 37.53
Net cash used In lnvesting actlvitles (B) (5,152.2%) (17.257.85)
Cash flow from financing actlvitles
Proceeds from issue of equily shares . 1.45
Proceeds from Issue of Compulsorily Converlible Debentures 1,583.02 8,170.29
Proceeds from Issue of inter-corporate loans 200.00 ,
Proceeds from non current borrowings (net) 13,346.94 .
Repayment of lease liabilities (0.10) (0.03)
Interest paid (322.01) (0.08)
Met cash used In financing actlvitles (C) 14,807.85 8,171.63
Net Increase In cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 111.44 673.85
Cash and cash equivalents - openlng balances 975.47 - 301.62
Cash and cash equivalents - closing balances (rofer note 8) 1,086.91 975,47 |
Reconclllations pact of cash flows N
Particulars 1April, 2022 Cash flows(net) New leases Other 31 March, 2023
Non curreni borrowings
Term loans . 13,346.94 - - 13,346.94
Inter- corporate loans . 200.00 - 200.00
- 13.546.94 N 13,546.94
Lease liabliitles (including current) o 0.85 (0.10) 1.15 . 1.90
The cash flow statement is prepared using the “indirect method” set out in Ind AS 7 — Statement of Cash Flows.
See accompanying notes to the financlal statements
As per our altached report of even date,
For SHAH GUPTA & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors \
Chartered Accountants = .
FRN No. 109574W ‘L\\
Z / = \ [ /A
, ; o \ I/l)_}-" ! \\ )
| |I > .I | ""‘-‘: - : \\ % o
Heneel K Patel X -/ Amit Agarwal Pattanasetty [njaglerir”
Pariner X ! Director Director =
M No. 114103 A DIN: 09204911 DIN: 09514548

Place : Mumbai
Date: 25, April 2023
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n) Statement of Compliance & 11. Basis of preparation and presentation
I Statement of compliance

Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under the section 133 of the Companics Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Slandards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation and disclosures requircment of Division I of revised
Schedule 11 of the Companies Act 2013, (Ind AS Compliant Schedulc 111}, as applicable to standalone financial statement.

Accordingly, the Company has prepared thesc Financial Statements which comprisc the Balance Shect as at 31 March, 2023, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year cnded as on that date, and accounting
policies and other explanatory infonnation.

IT Basis of preparation and presentation

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis excepl for certain financial instruinents measured at fair
valucs at the end of cach reporting year, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a lability, the Company takes in account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characleristics into account when pricing the assct or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/ or
disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of Ind AS 102, leasing transactions that are within the scopc of Ind AS 116, fair value of plan asscls within scope the of Ind AS 19 and
measurcments that have some similaritics to fair value but arc not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS
36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level I, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs 1o the fair value measurements are obscrvable and the significance of the inputs to the fair valuc measurements in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

« Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

« Level 2 inputs arc inputs, other than quoted prices includcd within level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

= Level 3 inputs arc unobservable inputs for the assct or liability.

b) Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees (Rs.) which is also the Company's functional currency, and the amounts are rounded

off to lakhs with twa decimal places, unless otherwise stated.

c) Use of estimates
The preparation of the financial slatements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires management lo
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policics and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and cxpenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to nccounting estimates is recognised prospectively.

d) Current and non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is current, when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
« It is expected (o be reslised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
« I is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
« [l is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
« It is Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or uscd to settle a liability for at least twelve months afier the reporting
period.
Current assels include the cutrent portion of non-current assets. All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is cumrent when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
o I is expecled (o be sellled in nognal operating eycle;
« It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
« It is due to be setiled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
« There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at lcast twelve months after the reporting period.
Current liabilities include the current portion of non-current liabilities, All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Operegting cycle:
Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents—Aeeardingly, the

Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current — non-current classification afossele A (a8 lies
F/EAs
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Nengrex Steel Private Eimited
Notes to the {inancial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023 {continued)
Nole 1 Significant wecounting policies (continned)

¢} Revenue recognition
A, Saleal Goods
The Company recegnises revenue when control over thie promised goods or servives is trausferred to the customer at an amount that refiects
the consideration o which the Company expects te be entitled o exchange tor those goods ev services

The Campany has peneraliy concluded that it s the principal in its revenue arrangements as it typicaliy controls the poods or serviees before
transferring thee te the custamer.

Revenue is adjusted for variable consideration such as discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price concessions, incentives, or other similar items
in a contract when they are highly probable to be provided. The amount of revenue excludes any amount collected on behalf of third parties

The Company recognises revenue generally at the point in time when the products are delivered to customer or when it is delivered to a casrier
for export sale, which is when the control over product is transferred (o the customer. In contracts where freight is arranged by the Company
and recovered from the customers, the same is trcated as a separate performance obligation and revenue is recognised when such freight
services are rendered.

In revenue arrangements with mulliple performance obligations, the Company accounts for individual products and services separately if they
are diglinct - i.e. il a product or service is separately identifiable from other items in the arrangement and if a customer can benefit from it. The
consideralion is allocated between

separate products and services in the arrangement based on their stand-alone selling prices. Revenue from sale of by products are included in
revenue.

Contract balances

i) Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by
transferring goods or services to a custorner before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for
the carned consideration.

ii) Trade recelvables
A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered and fo the extent that it has an unconditional contractual right to receive cash or
other financial assets (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

iii) Contract liabilitics

A contract liability is the obligation to teansfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has reccived consideration (or
an amount of consideration is due) from the customer, If a customer pays consideration beforc the Company trans(ers goods or services to
the customer, a coniract liabilily is reccognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract including Advance received from Customer.

fv) Refund llabilitles

A refund liability is the obligalion to refund some or all of the consideration received (or reccivable) from the customer and is measured at
the amouat the Company ultimately cxpects it will have to return to the customer including volume rebates and discounts. The Company
updates its estimates of refund liabilities at the end of each reporting period.

B. Dividend and intcrest lncome
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established (provided that it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Interest income fromn a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benelits will flow to the Company and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Intcrest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life nf Hmﬁuuncm,fnﬂsc( 1o,

that assct’s net carrying amount on initial recognition )
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Neotrex Steel Private Limited
Notes to the financial stacements for the year ended 31 March, 2023 (continued)
Note 1 Significant accounting policies (cortinued)

f) Property, plant and ecguipment
The cost of property, plant and equipment compuises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import dutics and other
taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable frous the tax authorities), any directly auributable expenditure on making the asset ready for
its intended use, including relevant borrowing costs for qualifying assets and any expected costs of decommissioning. Expenditure incurred
after the property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, arc charged 1o the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the year in which the costs are incurred, Major shut-down and overhaul expenditate is capitalised as the activities
undertaken improves the economic benetits expected o arise from the assct

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benelits are expected to arise from the
continued usc of the assel. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and egnipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the assct and is recopmised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Assets in the course of construction are capitalised in the assets under Capital work in progress. At the point when an asset is operating at
management's intended use, the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment and
depreciation conunences. Costs associated with the commissioning of an asset and any obligatory decommissioning costs are capitalised
where the assct is available for use but incapable of operating at normal levels until a year of commissioning has been completed. Revenue (net
of cost) generated from production during the trial period is capitalised.

Property, plant and equipment except freehold land held for use in the production, supply or administrative purposes, are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The Company has clected to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the financial
statements on transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deerued cost as at the date of transition.

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value. Depreciation is
recognised 5o as (o write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties under construction) less their residual values over their
useful lives, using straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of
following categories of assets, in whose case the lifc of the assets has been assessed ss under based on technical advice, taking into account
the nature of the assct, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anlicipated
technological changes, manufacturers warranties and mainlenance support etc.

Class of assets - years
Plant and cquipment 20 to 30 years

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and cquipment and any significant part initially recognised is derccognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are cxpected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal procecds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Gains and losses arising from derecognition of property plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statemeat of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

g) Impairment
At cach reporting date, management reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately. The recoverable
amount of an assct s the greater of its value in use and fair value less cost 1o sell, Value in use is based on the estimaled future cash flows,
discounted to their present valuc using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value . jind risks

specific to the asset. -
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Neotrex Steel Private Limited
Nates to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023 (continued)
Note I Significaut accounting policies (continuxd)

h) Taxes
Income @ax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and defened tox
Current 1ax
Current tax is the amount of expected tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year as detenmined in accordance with the applicable tax
rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

Deferred tax

Defened tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carying amounts of assets and liabilitics in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary dillerences
Deferred tax assets arc rccognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that laxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a busincss combination) of assels and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises {rom the initial recommition of goodwill,

The carrying amount of defermed tax assets is reviewed at the end of each rcporting year and reduced to the extenl that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all ar part of the asset to be recovered. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed
at each reporting date and are recognised to the cxtent that it has become probable that future taxable profils will allow the deferred tax asset to
be recovered

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are ineasured at the (ax rates that are expected to apply in the year in which the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting year.

Deferred tax asseis and deferred tax liabilitics are offsel if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate (o the same taxablc entity and the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Cugrent and deferred tax are recognised in profit and loss, excepl when they are rclating to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the carrent and deferred tax arc also recognised in other comprchensive income or directly in
equity respectively, Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in
the accounting for the busincss combination.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the relevant entity
intends to settle its cwrent tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

i) Inventories
Inventones arc staled at the lower of cost and net realisable valuc.

Cost of raw materials include cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present lacation and condition. Cost
of semi- finished /finished goods and work in progress include cost of direct materials and labor and a proportion of manufacturing overheads
based on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs. Cost of iron ore invenlory includes cost of mining, bid premium,
royalties and other manutacturing overheads. Cost of traded goods include purchase cost and inward freight.

Costs of inventorics arc determined on weighted average basis. Net realisable value represents the estlmated/sdyn‘gwiénl-ﬁrrWus
= . ” 2 LJ ¥ 4 .
less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. / N e O \
S v e Yo A Y
W\
i fal «\
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Neatrex Steel Private Limited
Notes to the financial statentents for the year ended 31 March, 2023 (conunued)
Note 1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

J) Lieases
The Company assesses al conlract inception whethes a contiact is, or confains, u lease That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identificd asset Tor a peviod of time in exchange {or consideration

Company as lessee

The Company applies a single secognition and measurement approach for all Jeases, except for shott-tenn leases and leases of low-
value assets. The Company recognises leasc liabilities o make lase paymenls and right-of-use ass<ls representing the right 10 use the
underlying assets

Right-cf-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencenent date of the lease (i.c., the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets arc measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurentent of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incwred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Unless the Company is reasonahly cettain fo obtain
ownership of the leased asset at the end of the ease term, the recognised right-of-use asscts are depreciated on a straight-line hasis over the
shorter of its estimated useiul life and the lease term and the lease term is as follows

Class of asscts Years
Leasehold land 15 Ycars

If ownership of the lcased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exetcise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. Right-of-use asscts are subject to impairment test.

Lease liabilitics

At the commencement datc of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilitics measured at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives reccivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.

The variable lease payments (hat do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expensc in the period on which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement datc, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of leasc liabilitics is remeasured if there is
a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes 1o fulure payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate uscd (o detennine such Icase payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying assel.

Shert-terni leases and leases of low-value assets
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option), It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption
to leases that are considered

k) Provisions (other than for employee benefits)
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated
reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to setile the obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet datc) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating losses arc not provided for.

A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Company from the contract are lower than
the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the present value of the
lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before such a provision is
made, the Company recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with thal contract.
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Neo(rex Steel Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements {or the year eaded 31 March, 2023 (conlinuer)
Nofe 1 Signifieant accounting policies {continucd)

3] Foruign currency trapsactions
I'hese firancial statements are preseated in INR, which is also the Company s funcuardd carrency

Foreiga cutrency transactions are transiated into the function lic exchange rates at the dates of the tansactions Iou,wn
exchange gains and losses resulting from the

denomiinated in forcign currencies at year end exchanpe vales are generally recagnised in the statenient of profit or Juss

P omreney using

of suech transactions and fram the transfation of monetary assets and fiat

sceitlemen

foreign exchange diiferences regarded as an adjustment o bammawing costs ace presented in the statement of profit and Joss, within finance
costs. All other forcign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit and less on a net basis within other gains/(losses).

Non-maonetary items that are measurcd at fair value in a foreign currency are ranslated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value arc reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

m) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assetls, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of thase assets, until such time as the asscts arc
substantially ready for their intended use or salc

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they are incurred.

The Company determines thc amount of borrowing costs ¢ligible for capitalisation as the actual borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing
during the year less any interest income earned on temporary investment of specilic borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets,
to the extent that an entity borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, In case if the Company borrows generally
and uses the funds for obtaining a qualifying asset, borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation are dctermined by applying a capitalisation ratc
to the expenditures on that asset.

Borrowing Cost includes exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to
the finance cost.

n) Government grants
Govermnment grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions altached (o them
and that the grants will be received,
Governmenl grants are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the years in which the Company recognises as
cxpenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate or when performance obligations are met.
The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest and effect of this favorable interest is treated as a government grant. The
Loan ot assistance is inilially recognised at fair value and the govemnment grant is measured as the difference betwecn proceeds received and
the fair value of the loan based on prevailing market interest rates and recognised to the Statement of profit and loss immediately on
fulfillinent of the performance obligations. The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities.

o) Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits
Payments to defined contribution retirement bencfit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them (o the contributions.
For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting year. Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of
the changes to the asset cciling (if applicablc) and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately in the Balance sheet
with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the year in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in other
comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to Statement of profit and loss. Past service
cost is recognised in Statement of profit and loss in the year of a plan amendment or when the company recognises corresponding restructuring
cost whichever is earlier. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined bencfit liability or asset. Defined benefit
costs arc categorised as follows:
{1 service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements),
LI net interest expense ot incorme; and
0 re-measurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in Statement of profit and loss in the line item ‘Employee benefits
expenses’, Curlailment gains and losses are accounted for as past scrvice costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company’s defined benefit
plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited (o the present value of any economic benefits available in the lnnn _{ u.iu.ugs fmm
the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans. - o 5
A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer pfﬂm ln_rmln wtion b;n: ;_1.'
and when the entily recoenises any rclated restructuring costs. \
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Neotrex Steel Private Limited
Notcs to the financial statements for the vear erded 31 March, 2023 (continued)
Note 1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

0) Employve benefils (continued)
Short-term and other long-term employcee benefits
A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to emplayees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the year the
related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.
Liabilitics vecognised in respeet of short-term employec benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expecled to be paid
in exchange for the related service.
i iabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outllows
expected 10 be made by the Company in respect of scrvices provided by employees up to the reporting date.

p) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is compuled by dividing the profit and loss after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outsianding during the year is adjusted for treasury shares, bonus issue, bonus
element in a rights issue to existing sharcholders, share split and reverse share split (consolidation of shares).

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit or loss after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest aud other charges to expense or
income (net of any atributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares including the treasury shares held by the Company to satisfy the exercise of the share options
by the employees.

q) Financlal instruments
i. Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables and debt securitics issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured al fair value plus or minus, in the casc of a financial asset or financial liability not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue of the financial assct or financial
liability.
ii. Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets
O initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- amortised cost;
- FVOCI —debt investment;
- FVOCI - equity investment; or
-FVTPL
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model

for managing financial asscls.
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Neetrex Steel Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023 {continued)
Note 1 Significant accounting policies (ventinsed)

g) Financial inseruments (conticued;
A financial assel is nweastred al amortised cost i iLmeete both of the fuilowing conditions and 18 not desipaated as at TYTPL:

— the assel is eld within 2 business moadei whose nbjective 1s 1o hold assels to collect contractual casls fiows; and
= {he contractual terms ¢

principal amount outs

the financial asset give rise on specified dales 1o cash Nows that are solely puyments of principal and iaterest on the

ing.

A debt investiment is measured at FYQCTif it mects both of the following conditions and is not designaied as at FVTPL:

1e asset is held within a business imadel whose objective is achieved by both collecting contructual cash flows and selling (inancial assets;
and
the contractual terms of the financial assct give rise on specified dates (o cash flows that are selely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding,

On initia) recognition of an equity investment that is not held for rading, e Company may iirevocably elect to present subsequent changes in
the investment’s fair value in QCI (designated as FVOCI — equity investment) This election is made on an investment by investment basis

All financial assets not classified as measurcd at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above arc measured at FVTPL. This includes all
derivative financial asscts. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevacably designatc a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level hecause this
best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The information considered includes:

— the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These include whether management’s
strategy focuses on earning contractual inferest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial
assets 1o the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assels;

— how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

— the risks that affect the performance of the business modcl (and the financial assets held within that busincss model) and how those risks are
managed;

— how managers of the business are compensated — c.g. whether compensation is based on the fair valuc of the assets managed or the
contractual cash flows collected; and

— the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial asscts in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and cxpectations about future sales
activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third partics in transactions that do not gualify for derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose,
consistent with the Company's continuing recognition of the assets. Financial assets that arc held for trading or are managed and whose
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assels: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this asscssment, ‘principal” is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as
consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of
time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers the contractual terms of
the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of
contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

— contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

— terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

— prepayment and extension features; and

— terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (€.g. non recourse features)

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment amount substantially
represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional
compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its
contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount
plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as
consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial rccognition. :
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Neotrex Steel Private Limired
Noles to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023 (continned)
Note 1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

q) Financial instruments (continucd)
Finuncial assels: Subscquent meosurermient and gains and  losses
Financial assets at FVIPL: These assets are subscquently measured at fair value. Net pains snd losses, including any interest or dividend
income, are recognised in profit or loss
Financial asscts at amortised cost: These asscts are subsequently measwed at amoriised cost using the effective interest method. The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment losscs. Interest incone, foreign exchange pains and lagses and impairment are recognised in profit o)
loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in statement of profit or loss.
Debt investinents at FVOCT: These assets are subsequently mcasured at fair value. Interest income under the cffective interest method,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or Joss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCL. On
derccognition, gains and losses accumulaled in OCI are reclassified 10 profit or loss
Equity investments at FYOCL: These assets arc subsequently mcasured at fajr value. Dividends are recognised as income in profil or loss
unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in - OCI and
are not reclassified to profit or loss.
Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement und gains and losses
Financial liabilities are classified as measurcd at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classificd as
leld for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition, Financial labilities at FVTPL are measured at (air value
and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recopnised in staternent of profit or loss. Other financial Jiabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange pains and losses are
recognised in statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in statement of profit or loss.

iii. Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the
rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset arc transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not
retain control of the financial asset. If the Company enters into transactions whercby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecogniscs a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

The Company alsc derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified tenns are substantially
different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial lability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified tenns is recognised in profit or loss.

iv. Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offsct and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company
currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settlc them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle

the liability simultancously.

v. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Company holds derivative financial instruments. Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately
if the host contract is not a financial asset and certain criteria are met.

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measurcd at fair value, and changes therein
are generally recognised in statement of profit or loss.

i. Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost; and

- financial asscts measured at FVOCI- debt investments.

Al cach reporting datc, the Company assesses whether financial asscts carried at amortised cost and debt securities at FVOCI are credit-
impaired. A financial asset is “credit- impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future eash flows of
the financial asset have occurred. ‘A{
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Neotrex Steel Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023 (continacd)
Note T Significant accounting policics (continucd)

@) Financial instrunents (continued)

shsarvable data

tis cred:
- significant {inam ty of the bormower o7 iss
- a hreach of conlbruct such as a defanil and overdue;
- the restruciuring of a lean or advance by the Conpany on lerms thal the Conpany would not consider otherwise;
- it is probable (hat t1c bommower will enter bankruptcy or ather financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearonce of an active markel for & securily because of financial difficolties.

Evidence that

al di

The Company measurcs loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the following, which arc measured as
12 month expected credit losses:

- debt sccurities that are determinced to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial
instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables arc always measured at an amount equal to lifetime cxpected credit Josses. Lifetime expected credit
Tosses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default cvents over the expected life of a financial instrument.

Measurement and presentation of allowances for expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls
(i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash (lows that the Company expects
to receive). Loss allowances for financial asscts measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross camrying amount of Lhe assets.

For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is not charged to profit or loss and is recognised in QCT

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial assct is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that therc is no realistic prospect of
recovery, This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate suflicient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write- off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject
Lo enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

ii. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company's non-financial asscts, inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to detennine whether there is any
indication of impairment. It any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For impairment testing, assels that do
not generate independent cash inflows are accompained together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest
Company of assets that gencrates cash inflows that are Jargely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUSs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in usc and its fair value less costs to sell. Valuc in use is
based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their presenl valuc using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 1o the CGU (or the asset).

The Company's corporate assets do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a corporate asset, recoverable amount
is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statcrment of profit and loss. [mpairment loss recognised in
respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying
amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or Company of CGUs) on & pro rata basis.

In respect of other assets for which impairment loss has becn recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting date whether
there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impainnent loss is reversed if there has been a change in the cstimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the cxicnt that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the

carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been ru;qgtﬁﬁca' -
A B

;
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Neolrex Steel Private Limiied
Notes to the financial statements {or the year ended 31 Mavch, 2023 {continued)
Nofe T Significant accounting policies {continucd)
ry Casli and cash equivakents
Cash zud cash eguivaknt i the Nalance She
tiree months or fess, which are subject o insigr

L cony ash at Lanks and on hand and short-term depesils with an anginal moatwrity of
ant 1isk of changes in value

ists of cash and shori-term depasits, as defined above, net of
autstanding bank averdratls as they are considered aninicgral part of the Coinpany’s cash managenent

For the purpese of the Statement of cash flows, cash and cash cquivalent co

s) Segment reporting
Operating sepments are reporied in a manner consisient with the intermal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker,
The Board of directors of the Company has been identified as (he Chicf Qperating Decision Maker which reviews zud assesses the financial
performance and makes the strategic decisions

1) Events occurring after the balance sheet date
Impact of ¢vents occurring after the balance sheet date that provide additional information materially affecting the determination of the
amounts relating to conditions existing at the balance sheet are adjusted to respective assets and liabilities.

u) Contingent Liabilitics and Contingent Asscts
Contingent liabilitics are disclosed when there is a possiblc obligation arising from past events, the cxistence of which will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or More uncerain future cvents not wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation
that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the
amount cannot be made.
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past cvents and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.
Contingent asset are not recognised but are disclosed in the niotes where an inflow of ecanomic benefits is probable

v) Critical estintates and judgements
In the course of applying the policies outlined in all notes under section 2 above, the Company is required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimales and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered (o be relevant, Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying  assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of the revision and future year, if the revision affects current
and future year

i) Usefil life of depreciable assets

Management reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at least once a year. Such lives are dependent upon an assessment of
both the technical lives of the assels and also their likely economic lives based on various internal and extemal factors including relative
efliciency and operating costs. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation and amortisation expected in future periods

i) Classification of financial instruments as equity or liability

Significant judgement is required to assess whether an instrument is Equity or financial liability. Management has exercised significant
judgement to evaluate the terms and conditions of certain financial instruments with reference to the applicability of contingent settlement
provisions, evaluation of whether options under tie contract will be derivative or a non-derivative, assessing il certain settlcment terms are
within the control of the Company and if not whether the occurrence of these events are extremely rare, highly abnormal and very unlikely,
clarifications between the parties (o the agreement subsequent to the date of the agreement to conclude that the instruments be classified as an
equity instrument.

iif) Recoverability of trade receivables

The Company analyses the historical payment patlemns of customers, customer concentrations, customer creditworthiness and current
economic trends on an ongoing basis, If the financial condition of a customer deteriorates, additional provision is made in the accounts.

iv) Conlingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Company. Potential liabilities that
are possible but not probable of crystalising or are very difficult to quantify reliably are treatcd as contingent liabilities, Such liabilities are
disclosed in the notes but are not recognised. The cases which have been determined as remote by the Company are not disclosed.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the (inancial statements unless when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

v) Fair value measuremenis
When the fair values of financial assets or financial liabilitics recorded or disclosed in the financial statements cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active matkets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The mputs (o these mpdels
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in csmhﬁshmg fm,r \nlum
Judgements include consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. L
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Neotrex Steel Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023 (continued)
Note 1 Significant accounting policies (coniinued)

w) Recent accounting pronouncements
Ministy of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standards or amendmeats (o the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Rules as issued fram time lo time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the entities to disclosc their matenial accounting policies rather
than their significant accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendiment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1,
2023. The Company has evaluated the amendinent and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the standalone financial statements.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - This amendment has introduced a definition of
‘accounting estimates’ and included amendments (o Ind AS 8 to help cntities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in
accounting estimates. The effective date for adaption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023, The Company
has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its standalone financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has nammowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to
transactions that give risc to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods
beginning on or afier April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its standalone {inancia

al X
¥
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Neotrex Steel Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March, 2023

A. Equity share capital

Particulars

As at 01 April 2021
Movement during the year
As at 31 March 2022
Movement during the year
As at 31 March 2023

B. Instruments entlrely equity In nature

{ Amount in ¥ laklis)
Amount

1.00

1.45

2.45

245

(Amaynt in T lakhs)

Partlculars __— = Amaunt
As at 01 April 2021 2,244.24
1ssue of Campulsory Convertible Debentures - _ R.170.29
As at 31 March 2022 10,414.53
Issue of Compulsery Convertible Debentures —= 1,583.02
As at 31 March 2023 11,997,558

C. Other Equity

(Amount in T lukhs)

liems of Qther Comprehonsive

Rescrves and surplus Tncome /(1.oss) (OCH}

SOt Retalned earnings Lquity tnstruen(s thi’ougl.l' other Total
I . comprehensive ineoie >

Opening balances as at I April, 2021 (4.22) (4.22)

Profit for the year 15.07 15,07

Balances a5 at 31 March, 2022 10.85 B 10.85

Profit for the year o 31523 E 315.23

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income fax . (30.19) (30.19)

Closing balance as at 31 March, 2023 326.08 (30.19) 295.89

See accompanying noles to the financial statements

As per our aitached report of even date.

For SHAH GUPTA & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors y

Chartered Accountants - \

FRN No. 109574W I\

-~ },ul - | \'.

Heneel K Patel /1 Amit Agarwal Pattanasetty [tajaslickar

Partner " Director Director ¢

M No. 114103 DIN: 09204911 DIN: 09514548

Place : Mumbai

Date: 25, April 2023
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Neotrex Steel Private Limhied
Nates to the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023 {continued)

1.3 Right-of-use asscts wnd Lease liability

Righi-af-use assets as 3t and for vear caded 31 March. 2022 N { Amount w3 Jakhis)
1 thearlan s o . - A

Gross carrying amount
As al | April, 2021 25,49
Adilitions / Trandder in - .

Gross I‘Ill'l'\'h}z_ wmant s gl 31 I\lx_!!__r_l!,_il]_i‘:_l —

Accumulated depreciation
Up to 1 April 2021 1.42
Depteciation clio g for the vitu — 0

Acennnlnted depreciativn sip to 31 Mapeh, 2022 312

Net book value as at 31 March. 2022 22.37

Right-of-use assets as at snd fnr year ended 31 March, 2023 { Amenmt in T lakhs)
Land

Particulars -

Gross carrying amount
As at | April, 2022 25.49
Adilitions / Transfer in 12.91

Gross earrying amount as it 31 Muveh, 2023 . 5842
Accumulated depreclation
Up to 1 April, 2022 312
Doprecintion charge for the year 3.53
Ave lated deprecintion up to 31 March, 2023 6.65
Net book value as at 31 March, 2023 51.77
Lease liabllities { Amount in ¥ lakhs)
Particulars L S
31 March, 20123 31 Mareh, 2023
As at 01 April, 2022 ; 01 April, 2021 0.85 0.88
Additions 1.15 .
Interest accrued 0.15 0.08
lcase principal payment (0.10) (0,03}
ledtse interest puyrsent (0,153 (U.0%)
A st 31 Mareh, 2023 ; 31 Murch, 2022 190 085
Breakup of lease 1ixbilitivs: { Amount in ¥ lakhs)
Particulars Asilt =
31 Mareh, 2023 31 March, 2022
Current 0.26 0.11
Nop- eurrent 1.64 .74
Total lease liahitities 1.90 .85
The table below provides details reparding the contractual maturities of lease liabilitivs as at 31 March, 2023 on s undiscounted basis: { Amennat i £ Jaklis)

. As at As at
s T, 31 Mareh, 2023 31 March, 2022
1ess than 1 year 0.25 .11
1-5 years 1.00 0.44
More than § vears 2.14 0.88
Total lease labililes 339 143

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabililics as the current assets are sufficient Lo meet the obligations related to lease liabilities

as and when they fall due.
The Company has recognised Rs. 0.50 lakhs as rent expenses during the year which pertains to short term lease/ low value ssset which was not recognised s pif( mmor\

use assel.
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Neotres Steel Private Limited
Nates to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023 (cortinued)

3 Envestments (Non- Current)
Envestment in equity instruments
Quoted-Gthers (at fair value through OCH
JSW JYinergy Limited (refer note 38)
72,000 (31 March 2022: Nil) equity shares of Rs. 10 each/-

Apgregate book value
Agpregate market value

4 Other non-current linanclal assets
Unsecured and considered good
Security deposits (refer note 38)
Inlerest receivable on bank deposits
Balances wilh banks
- with maturify more than 12 months at inception*

* Earmarked as margin money deposil agasint bank guarantees

W

Other non-current assets
Unsecured and considered good
Capital advarces
Other Advances

- Prepayments

(-9

Inventorles

Raw materials (at cost)

Semi finished / finished goods (at cost or net realisable value) *
Production consumables and stores & spares (at cost)

* Includes finished goods stock-in-transit of Rs. 748.28 Lakhs (31 March 2022: Nil)

7 Trade recelvables (current) #
Trade Receivables considered good - Secured
Tmade receivables considered good - Unsecured (refer note 38)
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts
Trade Receivables — credit impaired
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

A Agelng of trade recefvable as at 31 March, 2023
Undisputed trade receivableseonsidered good
Unbilled

Not yet due

less then 6 months

6 months to 1 year

1 year to 2 years

2 year to 3 years

More (han 3 years

The credit period on sales of goods ranges from 7 to 120 days with or without security

¢ Apount in 2 Jukhel

As at

31 March, 2023

173.41
173.41

207.50
173.41

32545
27.64

360.00

Asar
31 March, 2022

310.90
9.49

360.00

713.09

680.39

86.41

102.18

20.04

86.41

122.22

1,527.86
1,302.94
220.87

3,051.67

5,127.18

5,127.18

4,738.90
38828

5,127.18

Before accepting any new cusiomer, the Company uses an external credit scoring syslem lo assess the potenlial customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by

customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed once a year

The Company does not generally hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances nor does it have a legal right of offset against any amounts owed

by the Company o the counterparty

Credit risk management regarding trade receivables has been described in note 41.

‘Trade receivables from related parties' details has been described in note 38

Trade receivables does not include any receivables from directors and officers of the company.

8 Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with Banks
- In current accounts
- In term deposit accounts with maturity less than 3 months at inception
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Neotrex Stee] Privaw Limited
Notes Lo 1he Gnancial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh, 2023 (continued;

9 Bunk balances other than cash and cash cquivalents
Baiances with Kanks In e deposit accounts
with maturity more than 3 months but fess than 12 months alinception

10 Other current financial assets

Tnterest receivable
- on bank deposits
- on security deposits (accrued but not due) (refer nale 38)

—_

Other current assets

Unsecured and considered good

Other Advances
- Advance to supplicrs
- Indirect tax balances/recoverable/credits
- Prepayments and others

12 Equity share capltal

Authorlsed eapital
50,000 (31 March 2022: 50,000) Equity shares of the par value of ¥ 10 each

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up capital
24,500 (31 March 2022 24,500) Equity shares of the par value of ¥ 10 each

Rlghts, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:

As at
31 March, 2023

[ Amioeent in 3

3 lekhyj

Asaf
31 March, 2022

140,00 2134
140,00 11500
12.47 8.76
9.54 :
22.41 8.76
114.50 .
1,998.46 1,326.67
17.14 342
2,130.10 1,330.09
5.00 5.00
5.00 5.00
245 245
2.45 245

The Company has a single class of cquity shares having par value of 2 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for onc vote per share held. In the event of liquidation,
the equity shareholders are eligible to Teceive the remaining assets of the Company aRer distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

Reconclllatlon of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Partlculars Number of shares

Amount [n Rs.

Number of shares Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Lakhs
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 24,500 245 10,000 1.00
Issue of shates during the year . 14,500 145
Shares outstanding at the end of the yenr 24,500 245 24,500 2.45
Detalls of shareholder holding more (hii 5% shares
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Particulars Number of shares Yo Vuliding Numiber of shares % Holding
JSW Steel Limited 19,600 B0 19,600 80%
Jayant Padgilwar 2,450 10% 2,450 10%
Dilip Pagariya 2,450 10% 2,450 10%
Detalls of shares held by the HoldIng Company and/ or its subsidiaries / assoclates
Particulacs As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Number of shares % Hiold Number of shares % Holding
JEW Steel Limited 19,600 80% 19.600 80%

Detalls of shares held by promoters

As at 31 March 2023

Asat 31 March 2022

Partlculars Number of shares % Holding  Number of shares % HoldIng
JEW Steel Limited 19,600 80% 19,600 80%
Jayant Padgilwar 2,450 0% 2,450 10%
Dilip Pagariya 2,450 10% 2450 10%

Shares alloted as fully paid-up pursuant to contracts without payment being received in cash during the year of five years immediately precedin

sheet - "Nil"
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Neotrex Steel Peivate Limited
Notes 1o the financla) statements for the year ended 31 Mareh, 2023 (conlinued)
L micient in 2 ki
As af As at
31 March, 2023 2 Marcel, 2022

13 lastruments entirely equity n nature

Zero Coupon Compulsory convertible debentures (refer notc i) 10,414.53
';.'-l 14,54
14 Other cquity
Relained cernings (refer note ii) 326.08 10.85
Other Comprehensive Income:
Lquily instrumens through other comprehensive income (refer note iii) (30.i19) .
295.89 10.85

| Zero Coupon Compulsery convertible debentures (CCDs)
The Company has issued 119,975,500 (31 March 2022: 104,145,250) unsecured, Zero coupon compulsorily convertible debentues ("CCDs") of Rs 10 /- cach,
Convertible inlo equily sharcs of the company in the ratio of 1:1 al any time after 3 months but before expity af 120 months from the date of allotment, The said CCs
arc interes! free and non redeemable in nature.

ii  Retalned earnings
Retained camings arc the profits that the Company has camed till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or ather distibutians paid to shareholders.
Relained earnings includes re-measurement loss / (gain) on defined benefit plans, nct of taxes that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss. Retained
camings is a free reserve available to the Company,

iii  Equity Insiruments through other comprehensive income
The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fuir value of certain investment in equity instrument in other comprehensive income, This amount will be
reclassified Lo relained earnings on derecognition of equily instrument

15 Long term borrowlngs

Sccured

i. Term loans from banks (refer below) # 13,346.94 .
Un sccured

ii Inler corporate loans from related parties (refer note 38 & rcfer ii below) 200.00 .

1354694

# Borrowings arc presented net of upfont finannce and processing fees 31 March 2023: Rs. 15293 Lakhs (31 March 2022 : Nil)
i. Security and terms of term loan borrowlngs
A. Rupee term loan of Rs. 5,500 Lakhs (31 March 2022: Nil)
. Repayable after 12 months from scheduled commercial operation date in 28 quarterly installments and ROI - 9% p.a
2. First paripassu charge on immovable property,plant and equipment both present and future including mortgage of leasehold land rights related to project
3. First paripassu charge on all the project / borrower’s movable property,plant and equipmeni / propertics including plant and machinery, inachine spares, lools, and
accessories, fumitures, fixtures, vehicles and other movable assets both (current and future)

B. Rupee term loan of Rs. 5,500 Lakhs (31 March 2022: NlI)
1. Repayable after 12 months from scheduled commercial operation date in 28 quarterly installments and ROI - 9% p.a
2. Tirst paripassu charge on all property,plant and equipment both present and future assets of the company

C. Rupee term loan of Re. 2,500 Lakhs (31 March 2022: Nil)
1. Repayable after 12 months from commencement of commercial operation in 26 quarterly installments and ROI - 9.65% p.a
2. First paripassu charge on immovable property,plant and equipment both present and future including mortgage of leaschold land rights related to project
3. First paripassu charge on all the project / borrower’s movable property,plant and equipment / properties including plant and machinery, machine spaces, tools, and
accessories, furnitures, fixtures, vehicles and other movable assets both (current and future)

ii. Terms of Inter carporate loans from related partles
1. Unsecured - Inter corporate loan from related parties carries an interest rate of 10.10% p.a (subject to annu! resct) and compounded annualy
2. The said Inter corporate loan is repayable after 3 years from the first draw down dale or such other date as may be agreed by the bolh parties

16 Other non-current financlal liabilities (at amortlsed coat)
Retention money for capital projects - 733.71

- 733.71

17 Provisions (Non- Current)
Employce benefit obligations (refer nolc 39)

- Gratuity 2.31 0.06
- Compensated absences 438 ... 0.60
66T T e 066

VLé' 9/

i\ J
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Neotrex Steel Private Limited
Nales to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023 (continued)

18 Other non-current liabilitles
Export obligation deferred income (refer note 33) *

As at

31 March, 2023

710.29
710.29

{ Amonnr in  dorichiss

Ags at

31 March, 2022

710.29
710.29

* Export obligation deferred income represents government assislance in the form of the duty benefit availed under Export Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG) Scheme
on purchasc of property, plant and equipment accounted for as government grant and accounted in revenue on fulfillment of cxport obligation.

19 Trade payables (rcfer note 36 & 38)
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enferprises
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterpriscs

20 Other current financlal llabilities
Payables for capital projects
- Other than Acceplances
Retention money for capital projects
Interest accrued but not due on inter corporate loans (refer note 38)
Refund liabilities / provision for rebates, discounts to customer
Others

21 Provisions (Current)
Employee benefit obligations (refer note 39)
- Gratuity
- Compensated absences

22 Other current Habllitles
Advances from Customers
Other payables

- Statutory liabilities

23 Deferred tax asset / (labllities) (refer note 44)
Deferred tax assets/ (liabilitics), net recognised in the balance sheet comprises the following:
Deferred tax assets:
- Timing difference on brought forward business losses
- Fair valuation adjustments
- Other timing differences
Deferred tax liabllitles:

ial statements

- Excess depreciation allowable under income-tax law over depreciation gnised in the fi
- Other timing differences
Deferred tax asset / (liablllties), net

24 Income Tax Asset/ (llablilties), net
Advance tax
Provision for tax
Income tax asset / (liabilities), net
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283.11 -
7.407.56 3.90
7,690.67 3.90
281.44 10,109.19
784.85
4.58
51.80 .
13.12 259
1,135.79 10,111.78
0.12 0.03
012 0.03
563.90
24.12 8.84
588.62 8.84
133.05
13.04
033
(199.69)
(8.88)
(62.16) -
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Neotrex Steel Private Limited
Notes (o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023 (continued)

{ Amaiant in  lukhs)

Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022
25 Revenue from operatians (refer nole 42) -
Salc of products
Domestic turnover 12,186.12
Other operating Income
Sale of scrap (refer note 38) R4.28
Less: capitalized (2,092.65)
10,177.75 -
26 Other Income
Interest Income earned on fi ial assels designated as amortised cost
On security deposits - from related parties (refer nole 38) 10.60
On bank deposits 43.95 37.50
Interest [ncotne carned on financial assets that are designated as FVTPL 1.52 0.90
liability no longer required written back 1.50 .
Miscellaneous income 0.15. 0.03
571.72 38.43
27 Cost of materials consumed
Cost of materials consumed 11,424.53 :
Less: capitalized — (1,950.51) .
947402
28 Changes in Inventorles of finlshed and sem!-finished goods, work-1n-progress and stockin-trade
A. Openlng Stock:
Semi finished /finished goods -
Work-in-progress - .
B. Closing Stock:
Semi finished /finished goods 1,302.94
Work-in-progress .
1,302.94
Changes In Inventorles (A-B) (1,302.94) T
29 Employee benefits expense
Salaries and wages (net) 167.16 ]
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 39) 9.39 -
176.55 N
30 Finance cost
Interest on loans * 300.36 :
Interest on lease liability 0.15 0.08
Interest on inter-corporaic loans from related parties (refer note 38) 5.08 .
Other borrowing costs 2099
326.59 0.08
* Interest capitalized during the year is Rs. 671.89 Lakhs (31 March 2022: 35.21 lakhs)
31 Depreciation expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 257.12 2.82
Depreciation of Right of use assets 3.53 1.70
260.65 4.52
32 Other expenses
Rent 0.50
Rates and taxes 0.16
Power and fuel 390.74 .
Packing charges 93.10 -
Carriage and freight 358.71 .
Insurance 12,53 -
Travelling and conveyance 328
Communication 1.32
Repairs and maintenance
- Machinery 2,34 -
- Others 12.13
Professional and consultancy charges (refer note 34) 28.83
Net loss/ (gain) on foreign currency transactions and tranelation 1.80
Security charges 8.03
Miscelancous expenses 4019

917.56
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Neotres Steel Private Limited
Nates o the financizal statemenis for e year ended 31 March, 2023 (continned)

33 (a) Contingent liabilites
Disputed claimsAevies {ryciud

ticress, 1f any) - Nil §3 Mach, 2022 - Nii)

33 (b) Financlal puarantees
Hank puarantee issuad i favon of Custois’s Deparinent agains? es

1t obligation is amounting le Ry, 48 fakhs { azch 20022 Nil;

23 () Commitments
Istimated aout of Convacts remaining to be execuicd o capital accoant and nol mavi
33 (¢) Other commilments
The compzny has impenied capitel goods undsr tite expert promolion cepital goods scheme (o ulilice benefit 6f a zera custome duty rale. These benefits are subiject (o futwe exparts within
the stipulates year and such export obligation at year ené 3§ Marcs 2023 apgregate (o Rs. 14,322,59 Jakds (31 March 2022: 14.322.50 lakhs)

ed for (net of advances) Rs 9,763.5% 1akhs (31 Mard 12,802 takhs)

34, Audifors’ remuneration
. ification ¢

{ Amount in

N )
- For theyearended  For the year ended
Particulars M March, 2023 M Muoreh, 20002

250

g ;Tﬂim‘i audit fest mhpding ettt ahion i-itm»c:
Total

250

35. Corparate social responsibility (CSR):

Section 135 of the Companics Act 2013 and the Rules made thercunder preseribe that every company having a net warth of Rs SU0 crore or more, or furnova of Re 1,000 crore or morc or a nel profit
of Rs S crore or more during any financial year shal! enswre that the Company spends in overy fimancial year, al least 2% of the average nef profits made doring the three diately preceding financial
years, in pursuance of its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy. The provisions pertaining lo CSR as prescribed under the Companies Act 2013 are not applicable to the Coimpany for the current
year.

36. Trade payables

Partlculars Pl AR
: e meee o 31 March, 2023 2 March, 2022

{n) Total g, dues of micro and small enterprises 28311 2

Disclosure pertaining to micra, small sud medlum enterpeises (as per Informatlon avuilable with the Company): R . o

Description As at Asat

- o AUMareh 2023 31 March, 2022

Principal amount outslanding as at end of year (refer note i) 3[8.61 380.86

Principal aimount overdue more than 45 days -

Interest due and unpaid as at end of year

Inlerest paid to the supplier

P'ayments made lo the supplicr beyond the appointed day during the year

Inferest due and payable for lhe period of delay .

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid os at end of year .

Amount of further intevest remaining due and payable in succeeding year o - -

i. I includes vendors classified as part of other financial liabililies in note 20 relating to payable for capital projecls amounting to Rs. 35.51 Lakhs in 31 March, 2023 (Rs. 380.86 Lakhs in 3| March,
2022).

; Asat As ut
Particulars B o - . 31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022
(b) Tota! outstanding, ducs of creditors other thao micro and small enterprises

Acceptances

(llhcsvlhln___ entahoed o . R S 7&?:?_ p—— '!"_'m.
Total o 740757 3.90
Agelog of trade payables
Ax at 31 March, 2023 o . ) L
Particols Unbilled Not —-~ — -—Qutstanding for foliowiug perioils from due date of payment | =

e dues  yetdue less thao 1 year 1ta 2 years 2te 3 yearn  More than 3 years
Acceptances o o N . : = = 3 = =
Other (han acceplances: .
MSME 141.53 136.63 495 283.11
Others 292.26 82.50 7,032.81 - . - 7,407.57
Disputed ducs - MSME - . . . s ; ¥
Disputed dues - Others I — = . - . . . - - s
Asat 31 Mareh, 2022 o - _ o .
—_—— Unbilled Nat o g for g periods from duc date of payment P
articufars dues  yetdue less than 1 year 1to 2 years 2to3 years More than 3 years

Acceptances - - . - = : : »
Other than acceptances: - - - - . . &
MSME - - . - -
Others 383 . 0.07 - -
Disputed dues - MSME " H . % 2
Digputed dues - Olhiery - - . e -

Payables Other than acceptances are nomally setiled within 180 days.
Trade payables from related parties’ details has been described in note 38
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Neotroa Steel Privade Limited

Nnies to the financial statemunts for (he year ended 31 March, 2023 (continucd)

37. Earnings per share CEPS')
Particulars

Earnings for releudittion of Basic EI'S

For the year ended
31 Murct, 2023

For the year ended
31 Maich, 2022

Profit available for equsty sharehoiders 315.23 15.07
Earntugs for cdlculation of Ditated EPS
Profil available for cquily shareholders 31523 15.07
Net profu for lhe yeur for calculation of Diluted EPS 315.23 15.07
Nominal value per share (in Rs) Id 10
Shares:
Nunber of shares at the beginning of the year 10,000 10,000
Total number of equity shares ouistanding at the end ol the year 10,000 24,500
Weiphted average number of equity shares oulstanding duting the year (a) 10,000 17,230
Equity shares upon conversion of compulsary converiible debentures (CCDs) 119,975,500 104,145,250
Weighted average number of CCDs autstanding during the year (b) 111,653,401 43,238,948
Weighted averagc nunber of cguity and CCDs outstanding duriog the year - for Basic and Diluted (a+b) 111,663,401 43,256,179
ELarpings per shure in R = Pur value of Re. 10 per share
Basic EPS (Rs) 0.28 0.03
Diluted EI'S (Rs.) - 0,28 0.03
38. Related party dlsclosures
I, llalding Company
a. JSW Slecl Limited
I1. Other Related Parties
a. Bhuwalka Pipes Privato Limited
b. JSW Cement Limited
c. JSW Energy Limited
d, JSW Project Limited
¢. Jindal Saw Limited
f. Shalimar Paints Limited
g. Acon Messurements Private Limiled
h, Everbest Consullancy Sarvices Private Lid
i. Neotrex Steel Wires Private Limited
). Dilip Kapurchand Pagariya.
k. Jayanl Suryakam Padgilwar.
I. Sheela Pagariya,
m. Rushabh Pagariya
n. Anup Rajiv Nilawar
a. Siddarth Kunkulol
A. Transaction with related pacties for the year eaded
= . — o { Aot i 2 Lakha)
- Tobiting Company Oilies related pariles
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended  For the year ended  For the year ended
31 Murch, 2023 31 March, 2022 31 Murch, 2023 31 March, 2022
Isaue uf equity share papital = _ : - .
JSW Sieel Lid : = 145 : 2.
Totst R o < _hAas - 2
Issue of Zovo coupun compulyory convartilile debentures —— — -
1SW Steel Tad B B — L206,42 ARG - .
_ Dilip Paguiya - - &840 190,00
. Sheals Pagatiyn N - - . 176,61
Rushabli Pagariya . =, _ = N > =
Anup Rofly Nilwwat ————e — N . .
—Jayan! Surysha Padjllwar o 2 =
Sl Kedol o - -
Tutal - S 1,266.42 T.187.06 983,23
Furchase of Goods / Services . ) . :
— — . ' 0L _A743
— s : 92857 20065
- Jindal Saw Limited, . - 2130 12533
7 Shalimar Vainty Limited B ) - - IR SEY
JSW Ty Limted ) - 663,41 .
) 12,670,81 2 .
Total__ = = EEY T L msAY sk
~ Purchase of Froperty, pliut and eqnipacat
JEW Steel 1inted — - i 1) - — :
L - S - s o T
Sal of scrap
JEW Steel Limted §4.26 . - =
Toial . 84.28. = = x
Al Glven =— - - =
C ISW Stwel Limied S . . smé2 - .
Total — - 52842 - I
Loans Taken ——
N J5W Stccl Limied - = ~200.00
. Bvabest Comsultncy Servics et bl — .
_ M Amup Rajiv Nilawar i —— =
Me. Dilip Pagariya T e e — e —
M. Shecla Paganiya -
o A5W Pececty Limiad — . = .
Tutal . . - — e — _ 20000 e
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Neotrex Stee) Privale Limited
Notes ta the financlal statements far the year cnded 37 March, 2023 (contisuced)
18, Related party disclosures (continued) :
A, Transaction with related parties for the year ended
L Amiint in % takhs)
Tiikalimg € nngain LR UL (TR BTTRUN TR

Particwlars For the year ended  For the year ecnded  For tlic year ended  For the year cnded
31 March, 2023 A1 March, 2022 31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022
Lamns vl
Fueibest Conmtillansy Servicis vl il . - 650,00
ML At agiv Nilawie . - 20n00
M. Lhlip Prigariyy - 100180
Mg Sheely Prgariyia 10000
o JEW Prijects Liinited 00.00
Taral - - - 1 850,00
lnterest Exprnses
TEW Steel Limted Sk - .
Duetbest Consultaricy Sorvices Pt Lad . L = - . 18,9
A, Aty Rajiv Nitawar . . = - . : = 6y
Me Bilip Fogiriya . i : 3 7
- —t * N - L: — —_ = 4 5 D"
W i'mjn.“l: Limited : . - 156
_ Tutal 7L A ==.. he . 3520
nterest Income. . :
W hrm’g. Limited ) - B . 10.60
Tatal - % .60
— GE - —
- - . - 00,00

Lease sentaly

. JSW Stecl Lunied = o F L} . -
Total on = .
B Amonnt due to/lrom relabed pariles . e — e (Amount in ¥ lakhs)
= Holding Campsny B T Other rr!nmi mmlrs
Particulars As nt As al As at As at

A Murch, 2023 3 March, 2023 31 Mareh; 2022

E——— T . »
il A G5 e -
JSW Bnergy Lamited .
Tatal . . 1.19
Trade Recrlvable -
_ ISWSteelLimied . i - —— - —
Total - B - -
Tnterest mnhhun c o foans S S R N B
JSW Steet Limted A5 . o . .
Tomal B 458 - . a
 Muterest rrccin_‘!llil.r_ll muu, dipoity N C IR .
o JsW Enerpy Limited R - - = $.54 -
__Talal_ I I . - = 9.54 -
 Secnrity l}lqnﬂh (_uhf('n . o _ S (R
JSW Steel Limted S 7190 i . o
JSW Encrgy Limited . - 300,00 RLO0
T T R 11X T Ao00

Terms and coudltions
Sales:

The sales 10 related panies are made on terms equivalent to those thal prevail in arm's length transactions and in the ordinary course of business. Sales !nnucuons are Lased on provailing price lists and
memorandum of understanding signed with related parties, For the year ended 31 March, 2023 & 31 March, 2022, the Company has not ded any impai of receivables relating to t
owed by related parties.

Purchases:

The purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's Jength transactions and in the ordinary course of busi Purchase ions are based o made on
normal commercial lerms and conditions and markel rates,

Lease:

Company has laken lease hold land from related party by giving o security deposit equivalent to guidcline market value and nominal Jease rents which represents its arms leagth pnce in the ordmuy
course of business
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Neaotrex Steel Prlsate Limited
Noles o the finaocial statements for the year ended 31 March. 2023 (eontinued)

39, Employee henefits
) Defined contribution plan

‘The Compimy aperates defined conuibution relizement beafi
oty

ampioyees. Linder these plans the Crs

a spovified percentage of payzall

guired 1o cont

1s) Defined benefit plans

The Company has unfunded defined beneln plans for walifving eaployees The leve! of benelits provided depends an the mwewbe’s length of service and saiay at
pratuily plan s covered by The Payment of Graluily Act, 1972 Under the grataity plan, the eligible eimployees are entitled to post-retiiement henefit at the rate of 15 days’ salary fos each year
of sesvice untii Mie retirement age of SR ang 60, withowt any payinent ceiling. The vesting paviod for gratuily as payzble under |'he Puyment of Gratuity Act, 1972 15 § years

nem age The

The piass in India typically expose the Compzny Lo acluanial tisks such as: longevily risk and salory nisk

P y| ) piny pevily 3
The present value of the defined benefi! plan fiability is calculated Uy reference to Uhe best estinate of (he mortality of plan participants
bath during ard aler their employment Ap increase in the hie expectancy of the plms participants wali increase the plan's lahily

Longevity risi:

. The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference Lo the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an
Salary risk: increase in the salasy of the plan participants will increase the plan's lisbility

‘The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at 31 March, 2023 by Independenl, Qualificd Actuary. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cosl and past service cost, were measured using he projecled unit credit method.

SO, . ......1. R AL ). B

T T T T e N Current o Curreni .
Provislons As at Asat Asat Asat
31 March, 102_.3 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022
Employee benefits: -
Provision for accumulaling paid sbsences 438 0.60 042 0.03
Provision for 231 (G : s
Total . o - 6.69 0.66 0.12 0.03
As at Asat
Employee beueflts: 31 Maech, 2023 31 Murch, 2022
Disclosure as per IND AS-19 - Employees benefits are categorised as follows:
A. Déefined Contribution Plans:
Company's contribulion o Provident Fund and Pension Fund 8.16 1.47
B. Defined Benefit Plans:
i) Gratuity
) Liability recognised In Balance Sheet
{) Preseat value of obligation
Opening Balance 0.06 =
Interest Cost 2 a
Current service cost 223 0.06
Acluarial (gain)loss on obligation 0.02
Closing Balance PR 2T A T .
b) Expenses durlng the year
Service Cost 223 0.06
Interest Cost -« -
Component of defined benellt coat recognised in statement of profit and loss . o 123 0.06
<l Prineipai la} pthim = e e ——— —
B Factotlina Fiir the year enided For the yeae entded
. — 30March, 2023 31 March, 2022
Discoutit rate 1.51% 7.29%
Expected rale(s) of salary Increase 6.00% 6.00%
Expected relum on plan assets NA NA
Atirition rute 2.00% 4.00%
Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured
Mortality rate during employment Mortality Lives Mortality
= — - 2012-14 (Urban) 2012-14 (Urban)
d) Sensltivity Analysis:

The sensitivily analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumplions occwrring af the end of the reporting period, while holding all other
{ Asmowi in £ ubhs)

Particulars A¥afil March, 2023

. lsrrease Detrease
Diootint Tale (1% movement) (0.3a) {145
Fulure salary growth (1% movement) 046 (0.37)

Employes tmover (1 ) 004 003

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change In the projected benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in
isolation of onc anothier a8 some of the assumplions may be correlated.

efit ol = — | Amountin T Lakhs)
| _ Lesthansyear Botween LtoSyears  OverSyems Total
at
Projected benefit payable . 0.10 10,92
A 8¢ 31 March, 2022
Projected bonefitpayable —_— = — [ . SE— -
P'articulars A at

M Mapeh, 2020 M

1) Privilege leave labllity
1) Llubllity recugnized bo the Balance Sheet

Preseut value of obligatica
Opening balanco 0.06 E
Paid during the yeas - E
Service cost
Closing balance

b) Expense durlag the year

Service cost
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Neatyex Steel Private Eimiled
Notes Lo the nanvinl statements (or the year ended 31 Alarch, 2023 {continued)

41 Financial instruments: Classifications and fair valuc measurements

Spliest pricaity 10 g

in the valuanen wehnigee The hiera
The caregorics ¢

d e WS

'NAV T
for Leves

3l value of Wl equily
clussiiication

franenly,

maximise the use of obsarvanic
d here T

: financisl instrumeats that are 5ot traded in an aclive markel (for examp!
markct dats g rely as I possible on compay-specific estimmates. I all significant inpus sequirzd to f:-
conlicls are heing vlass:Ged as Levet 2 finuncizl assels end Gnancial Liab

regn excha foryeard

3: The fair V1|Ll‘ of financia} instrumnenls thal arc measured on the basis of corapany specilic valuatiuns using saputs that are not based ont sbservabie masicet dala (unobservable inputs). Tieancial asscts
i mayables and other financial labilities are classificd as Tevel 3 financial assets snd

Level
and financial §i ¢ fike security depasits, teade receivables, cash and bank balances, ioans given, berrewings,

i
Hn-nclnl assets

<

[ Aot in R laidiny

Fuir vatboe thravgh ettice Faiv vakine thiongh

Particulars Carrying amoun Anmriised cost emibirehimite hemie e r biss Fule value
As ot 31 Murch, 2023
Tovestnents 17341 17341 . 173,41
Trade receivables 512718 5,127.18 . . £12718
Cash and cash equivalents 1,086 91 1,086.91 . 1.086.91
Bank balances ather than cash and cash equivaienls 140.00 140.00 . . 140.60
Qther firancial assets 13550 41008 ~ 11a48 (AER1]]
T20N.00 RN L) 17341 A2848 T a0
As al 31 March, 2022
Cash ard cash equivalents 97547 975.47 - - 975.47
Bank balances other than cash and cush equivaienls 215.00 215.00 . 215.00
Qiber financial assets [GENE ATR2S . o AN
1 K762 1,568,771 - Al 1.579.62
Fimnmetal fintifithes (Amaunt in ® lakhs)
Tarthenlars : ) Fale value thraugh other Fale valie through
Cerrying amaunt Amorlised eost T - prafites ;':“ Fulr value
As 1031 Morch, 2023
Borrowings 13,546.94 13,546 .94 - - 13354694
Lease liabilitics 1.90 - - 1.90 1.90
Trade payables 7.690.67 7,690.67 - - 2,690.67
Other financisl liabililies 1,044,599 L1380 - . 111539
PR AT 21337040 . 1.90 2LAT530
As at 31 March, 2022
Lease liabilites 083 - - 0.85 085
Trade payables 390 390 . E 3.90
Other financial liabilities 10 Ras.ay 10,845 44 . . (TR
10.850.24 1054919 - 0.A5 10.850.24

Fair value hlerarchy of finsnclal Instruments
The carrying amounts of lade receivables, rade payables. vapital creditors, cesh and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other financial assets and other financial liabilitics (other than those specifically

disclosed) are considered 10 be the same as their fair values, due to their shor term natuze.

{ Amtouing i 2 lakhs)
Particulars Anal Arat Fair value
A1 Marclh, 2025 M March, 2022 —| rely

Cunted inyestments (i equity sharcs ineanured wt FVTOCT 17341
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Neatrey Steel Private Limited
Notes to the Mndncial statements for (e year ended 21 March, 2023 (cuntinued)

4], Figancid Instruments: Classifications &nd (afr vajue measuecments

‘The Company has & Risk Mang st Cenniitlee established by its Board
ragement policies The risk management policizs 4
i risks, manilor the risks
changes in the market conditions and the Company’s aci
framewark in1elation o e risk faced by the Company

Lirectors for
} ”’(] I

and their Ji

ssk threshalds,
et pulivies and sytans arc

3 infprnation 1o the Maragement and the Board to
risk management policies ahms to mingate the following dsks az

L selling acceplabii

aluate the
s fiom the

ieviewed

adequac
ncial insirumenls

= Market 1isk

« Creditisk; and

- Liquidity risk

(A) Llquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implics maintaining sufficient cash and bank balance and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credil facilities
lo meel obligations wher duc . Dug to the dynamic nature of the underlying busi company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under commiued credit
lines

Management nionitors rolling forecasts of the company’s liquidity pesition (comprising the undraws borrowing facilities) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected
cash flows. In addition, the company's liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows and considering the level of liguid assets necessary (o meet these against
intemnal and exlernal regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans

() Financlag arrangements
weess fa the folluwing undrawn he end of tw: reporting period: (Amenntin 2 laldis)

MM Mw-23 31-Mar-22

- Expiring within one year (bank overdraft and other facilities)
- Expiring beyond ane year (other facilitics) -

(ii} Maturlties of financial assets
The tables below analyse the Company's financial asscts into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for:
Axar3hMaret, 2023 e e .S AATIONI T R IR

Particulars Upto 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
Tnvestments Sl . _— - 17341 173.41
Tradc receivables 5,127.18 . . 5,127.18

Cash and cash cquivalents 1,086.91 - . 1,086.91

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 140.00 . . 140.00

Othier financial assets N - 2241 gied 32545 735.50
Total - B R R 637650 . LRLE 136300
As at 31 Macch, 2022 { Amaoint g ¥ laklie)
Particulars Upto 1 year 1-5years More than 5 years Total
Cash and cash equivalents N ) 975.47 -

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 215.00 ]

Gaher fipangial nssets RIS 36949 110.90

Jod . —— . I 049 A0

(it1) Maturities of financlal Llabllities
The tables below analyse the Company's financial liabilities into rclevant maturity groupings based on their contractuel maturities for:

Asac 3l Mareh, 2003 = - t Amguntin  1akhs),
Particulars Upto 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
Borrowings o . 11,778.50 L2050 1350000
Inter corporate deposit . 200.00 . 200.00
Tradc puyahle 7.690.67 . . 7,690.67
Other financial linbilities 1,135.79 . - 1,135.79
Lease liabilitics 0.26 1.04 0.60 1,80
Tutal n R _B826,72 LRl S — A2 22.528.36,
At Mareh 2022 s = et e e e e _{ Amountin 2 lakhs)
Particulars Upto 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
Trade payable - i o 3.90 . . 390
Other financial liabilities (current) 10,111.78 733.71 . 10.845.49

Lease liabilitics o D .|

085
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Neaeres Stedd I'rivate Linsited
Noies (o the finaucial stntements for the year ended 31 March, 2023 (continued)

41, Financizl Instroments: Classifications and fair value mcasurciments
(B) Marcket risk

Marker 1isk is the risk (hat the fair vsiue of futare cash flews of a fin
foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and oiher price 1igk such as cqui

{instrmant will Mocluate because of change in marke! prices. Market cmprizes dliree types of risk:

Ly price risk and conunadity Tisk

(i) Forelgn curreney risk

The Company operates intemationally and is exposed w foreygn exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primati
tisk ariscs froim future cornmnercisl lransuclions and vecopilised as and linbilities denominated in & currency that is not the company’s functional currency (INR) The risk is
measured through a forecast of highly probable foreign currency cash flows Tlie objective of fhe hedpes is ta minimise the volatility of the INR cash flows of highly probabic
forecast transactions.

s with respect W the CURQ. Forsipn exchange

Net exposure (o forelgn currency risk

31 Mareh, 2023 = o L Amony in 2 lukhs)
Pacticulars ALD FURO Total
Advances 1.25 128.55 129,80
Payables (49,60 (49 60
1.25 78.95 K20

Net exposure to forelgn currency risk

A1 March, 2022 . (Amount in 3 )
Particolars AED EURO Totat
Advances .
Payables (113.24) (113.24)
(113,24) (113.24)

Sensitlvity Analysis ¢

Sensitivity of profit on & possible change in forcign exchange rates of +/-5% ( Amount in ¥ lakhs)
) o _dmpacton Profitor loss
Partlculars ) . N A-Mar-23. 31-Mar-12.
Foréign exclhiange rate increased by 5% 4.01 (5.06)
Foreign exchange rate i Sy f4.0n 5.66

(i) Intcrest rate visk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financia) instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is exposed ta
interest rate risk because funds are barrowed at fixed and floating interest rates. Inlerest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest rate.
The borrowings of the Conipany are principally denominated in rupees with mix of fixed and floating rates of interest

1 Ampunt (s T lalilis)

The follawin table pr

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022
Fixed mte borrowings 200.00
Floating rate borrowings 13,499.87
Less: Upftont fees (152.93)
Total borcowdngs . L6 -
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure (o i rates for Noaing rate liabilities, after the impact of hedge accounting, assuming the amount

of the liability outstanding at the year-end was autstanding for the whole year.

If intcrest rates had been 100 basis points higher / lower and all ather variables were held constant, the Company’s profit for the year ended 31 March, 2023 would decrease /
increasc by Rs. 135 lakhs (for the year énded 31 March, 2022: decrease / increase by Rs. Nil ). This is mainly attributable 10 the Company’s cxposure to interest rates on its variable
rale horrowings

(C) Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company has adopled a policy of only
dealing with creditworthy partics and obtaining sufficicat collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

The Company is exposed 10 credit risk for trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, investments, other bank balances, loans, other financial assets, financial guarantces and

derivative financial instruments
Moreover, given (he diverse nature of the Company's business trade receivables arc spread over a number of customers with no significant concentration of credit risk. This is the

fisst yesr of operations. Therefare, the Company does not expect any material risk on account of nonperformance by any of the Company’s counterparties. The assessment is caried
out considering the segment of customer, impact scen in the demand outlook of these segments and the financial strength of the cuslomers in respect of whom amounts are
receivable.

The carrying value of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk as at 31 March, 2023 and 31 March, 2022.

In respect of financial guarantees provided by the Company to banks and financial institutions, the maximum exposure which the Company is exposed to is the muximuii aiouin: -
which the Company would have to pay if the guarantee is called upon. Based on the expectation at the end of the reporting period, the Company considors that it i¢ niarckely'than ! -

not that such an amount will nol be payable under the guaranices provided.
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Neatrex Steel Private YLimited
Noles to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023 (continued)

42, Ind AS 115 Revenue (rom contracts with custumers
SN TEVEnue \VIIC“ COHL’OI cver the
ed in exchange for those goods or serviees

d goads o survices is twansfomed @ the customer a1 20 amount that rellars the consideration 1o which the Company

The Company 1<
expeats 1o be entil
i Amoual 1 € lekls)

far the year ended Far the year codvd

Particuars 31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022
Revenue from contracls with customer - Sale of products 12.186.12

Olher cperating revenue ¥4,

Total revenue from operatlons® 12,240

lidia o 12,270.40

Qutside India

Total revenue from operatlons 12,270.40

Timing of revenue recognition

Als puml n 111|1t' 12,270.40

Total reventie from upornnom 12,270.40

* Qut of which Rs. 2,092.65 Lakhs (31 March, 2022; Nil) is capitalized.

. _ (Amountin¥ lakhs)
Particulars el e
31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022

Trade Receivables (refer note 7) 5.127.18

Contract Balances

Contract liabilities

Advance from customes (refer note 22) * 563,90

The credit period on sales of goods ranges from 7 to 120 days with or without security.

* Contract lisbilities include short term advances received for sale of goods,

Out of the total contract liabilitiss outsianding s on 31 March, 2023, Ry, 563.90 lakhs (31 March, 2022: Nil ) will be recognised by 31 March, 2024 and remaining thereafier

Refund liabllitles o -

Av at As al
i
iy — e  MMarch2023 31 Mareh, 2022
A;mng ([TTTRY lllumc n-hm_s_ ﬂl}i_:i!sLulnlt_i_llln._ancl_cni in other fnsoial liabilitics- note 20) 51.50 I
The Campany docs not have any significent sdjusiments between the contracted [rtice and revenue {cm[:msmi in e

43. Income tax expense

Income tax cxpense recogmised in profit or loss { Amount in 2 lakhs)
Particulars For (he year ended For the year ended
B 31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022
Current tax
Current tax (including carlier years reversals / adjustments) 1.75 112
Deferred tax 66.06 —

67.81 1.12

Deferred tax

Reconciliation of income tax expense applicable {o accounting profit before tax at the statutory income tax rate lo recognised income tax expense for the year indicated as follows:

= Fur the year emled
k]|

Ao ¥ lakhs)

T the year ende

Eagticulars Ma.rs!! 2023 31 March, 2022
Profit before tax - N N 383,04 16.1900
Enacted tax ratc in india (Section 115BAB of Income-tax Act,1961) 17.16% 17.16%
Enacted Income tax expense at statutory tax rate 65.73 2,78
Tax on expenses not deduclible in determining toxable profit 0.79 0.65
Tax on depreciation and other allowance 0.91) (2.31)
Tex provision/(reversal) for earlier years on finalisation of incotne tax retums 1.75

Otlier timing differences 0.45 =
Income tax expense for the year e 67.81 g 112
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Neoty ex Steel Privete Limited
Notes to the financis] stetements for the year ended 31 March, 2023 (continued)

44, Deferred tax asset/ (liabilldles)
Sign ponents of daferid tax asseis/

Deferred tax balance In relation to

Excess depreciation allowable under income-tax law over deprecialion recognised in

1 the financial statvmnt. are as follows:

Recognlsed /
reversed through

a
31 Macch, 2022 profit and loss

the finaneial statements (199.69)

Timing difference on brought forward busincss lossca 133.05

Lease liabilities 0.33

Fair value of financia) instruments 9.14

Other timing differences (8.88)
€66.06)

4S5, Segoent reporting
The Company is in the busi of ing steel p
Operating Decision Maker (CODM") for L of Ci y's peric and

of non-current assets of ils single reportablc seg has been disclosed as below

) Revenue fom operations

Partlculars

Daomestic
Fixport

Total

b) Non current assets

All non-current assots of the Company are located in India.
¢) Customer contrftuting more thaun 10% of Revenue
Particulars

Larsen & Touluo l_J:II_JI_i-(;H..f_

Total

46, Evenis occurring after balance sheet

(Amoant in ¥ lakhs)

Recognised In /
reclassified from other
comprehensive Income

As at
31 March, 2023

(199.69)

133.05

033

190 13.04
(3.88)
.90 (62,16)

having similar economic characteristics, primarily with operations in India and regularly reviewed by the Chief
allocation. Thke information relating 10 revenue from extemnal cusliomers snd location

1 Amoumntan 2 Lakhsj
For the year ended
AJ Muarch, 2022

For the year vaded
31 Mareh, 2023

12,270.40
12,270.40
) { Amount in ¥ Jaklis)
For the year ended For (he yesr ended
31 Maweh, 2023 31 Mnrch, 2022
RALREN -
416504

The Corpany performed a review of events subsequent to the balance sheet date through the dafe the financial statements were issued and determined that there were no such cvents

1 in the financial

requiring recognition or di

47. Addidonal information
&) C,LF value of imports.
Particulars

Capital goods

Raw materiala

Stores & sparo ports -

b) Expenditure In forelgn currency - Nl
¢) Earningp la foreign currency - Nil
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Neotrex Steel Private Limited
Notcs to the financial statemenes for the year ended 31 March, 2623 (vontinued)

48. Additional regulalory information requived by Schedule TH
(i) Details of benami property held
No proceedings have been initialed on or are pending against the Cempany for olding benami property undee the Benami Transactions (Prohibition} Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
Rules made thereunder.
(i) Wilful defaulter
‘The Company lias not been declared wilful defaclter by ary bank or financial institution or govemment or any govermnent autliority or other lender in accordance with the guidelines
on wilful defauliers issued by the Reserve Bank of India
(hii) Compliance with number of layers of companles
The Company do not have any subsidiary as at the balance sheet date, accordingly compliance with section 2(89) of the Companies Act read with Companies (Restriction on number
of layers) Rules, 2017 does not arise.
(iv) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The Company has nol d into any sch of arr
(v) Udlisation of borrawed funds and share premium
(1) The Company has not advanced or loancd or invested funds 1o any other persons or entities, including forcign entilies (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the

Intermediary shall:
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneliciaries) or

b. provide any guarantes, sccurity or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries,

t which s ar accounling impact on current or previous financiel year.

(2) The Company has not received any fund from any peraons or entitics, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing ar otherwisc)
that the Company shall:

a. directly or indircctly lend or invest in ollier persons or entitics identificd in sny manner whalsocver by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Bencficiarics) or

b. provide any guamniee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

(vi) Undisclosed income
There is no i surrendered or disclosed as i during Uie curvent or previous year in the fax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the

baoks of account,

(vif) Detalls of crypto currency or virtual currency

The Company has not traded or invested in cryplo currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

(vlil) Title deeds of iImmovable properties not held {n name of the company

The company does not hold any immovable property.

(ix) Registratdon of charges or satlsfaction with Reglstrar of Companles (ROC)

There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Regi of Companics beyond the y period.

(x) Revaluatlon of Property, plant and equipment (Including Rightof-Use Assets)

The Company has not revalued it’s Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use asscts) or intangible assets or both during the current or previons year

(x1) Relationship with Struck off Companles
The Company has no ions with panies struck off under scction 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956

49, Previvus year {igures have been regrouped / reclassificd whercver necessary lo conform with the current year's classification / disclosure.

As per our altached report of even date.

For SHAH GUI:E&Q__CQ,___ For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Acl:fl;nﬁ('_uil_gll 1 \.,;3:\\
FRN No/1gsdaw — —— !

H S -
llcnerf‘i{‘i’_im; Amit Agarwal Pattanaselty Rajssheksr
Pattner o000 A0 ” Director Director '

M No. 114103 DIN: 0920491 1 DIN: 09514548

Place : Mumbai
Date: 25, April 2023
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